ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE TRANSPCORTATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 22, 2008
1:34 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Kyl e Johansen, Chair
Representati ve Mark Neuman, Vice Chair
Representati ve Anna Faircl ough
Representati ve Craig Johnson
Representative Wes Kel |l er
Representati ve M ke Doogan
Represent ati ve Wodi e Sal non

VEMBERS ABSENT

Al'l nenbers present

OTHER MEMBERS PRESENT
Representati ve Andrea Dol |
Representative Gabriell e LeDoux
Representative Beth Kerttul a
Representati ve Peggy W1 son

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

PRESENTATI ON BY DOT/ PF ON STATE TRANSPORTATI ON | MPROVEMENT PLAN
(STIP);

- HEARD

ALASKA MARI NE HI GHWAY SYSTEM ( AVHS) SCHEDULI NG
- HEARD

PREVI QUS COWMM TTEE ACTI ON

No previous action to record

W TNESS REG STER

JEFF OTTESEN, Director

Di vi sion of Program Devel opnent

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF)
Juneau, Al aska

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE -1- January 22, 2008



PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented and answered questions on the
STI P pl an.

DENNI S HARDY, Deputy Conmm ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Presented and answered questions on the
Al aska Marine H ghway System (AVHS).

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR KYLE JOHANSEN called the House Transportation Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 1:34:35 PM Represent ati ves
Neuman, Fai r cl ough, Johnson, Kel | er, Doogan, Sal non, and
Johansen were present at the call to order. Representati ves
Dol I, LeDoux, Kerttula, and WIson were also in attendance.

State Transportation | nprovenent Program

1: 34: 47 PM

CHAI R JOHANSEN announced that the announced that the first order
of busi ness  woul d be the presentation of the State
Transportation Inprovenent Plan (STIP) and the Al aska Marine
H ghway System Schedul i ng.

1: 35: 40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked for a status report on questions
generated fromthe January 17, 2008, committee neeting.

CHAI R JOHANSEN responded that the questions were forwarded to
the comm ssioner of the Departnent of Transportation & Public
Facilities (DOT&PF) yesterday at 2:30 p.m

1:36: 22 PM

JEFF  OITESEN, Director, D vision of Program Devel opnent,
Departnment of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF),
advised that he oversees the STIP, and in that capacity is
responsi bl e for managi ng and producing the STIP. He offered to
expand his presentation, which is included in the conmttee
packet with any |evel of detail the conmttee desires.

1:37: 01 PM

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE - 2- January 22, 2008



CHAIR JOHANSEN noted that his constituents have experienced
frustration with the STIP s conplexity, but he acknow edged that
DOT&PF nmust react to constantly changing federal regulations and
rul es.

1: 37: 42 PM

MR. OTTESEN offered an overarching comment that the STIP is a
technical program and that the stability of the program has
suffered due to changes at the federal |evel. He outlined four
topics of discussion, 1) Ceneral Overview Federal Transportation
Funding Process and Rules; 2) SHAKWAK Fundi ng; 3) How t he
Federal Funding Process Relates to State Funding; and 4) The
State STIP/the STIP Anendnent Process.

1: 38: 53 PM
REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked for an expl anati on of SHAKWAK.

MR. OITESEN responded that SHAKWAK is a term for a geol ogical
trench feature in the Yukon, and that Alaska runs through this
feature. SHAKWAK is funded by two prograns: one is a |ong-
standing program which has been used to build parts of the
hi ghway system in the Yukon Territory and a snall piece of the
system in British Colunbia [Canada], which has been funded with
federal highway dollars for over 30 years; the second use of the
termis for a nore recent provision in federal law that allows
DOT&PF to create a special category of funding for the Al aska
Marine H ghway System (AWVHS), the Haines Hi ghway, and nore
recently roads that lead to ferry term nals.

1: 39: 49 PM

MR. OTTESEN, in response to a question by Representative Doogan,
stated that the STIP is a legal requirenent that the state nust
followto be eligible for federal dollars.

MR. OITESEN referred to page 2 of his overview |abeled,
“DOT&PF’ s CGener al Overvi ew Feder al Transportation Fundi ng
Process and Rules”, and explained that the federal highway
program began in 1916 and is a body of |aw that has been anmended
many times, wth the |ast anendnent being the federal Safe,
Account abl e, Flexible and Efficient Transportation Equity Act of
2004 ( SAFETEA-LU). He stated that, to give the conmttee an
idea of the conplexity of the anendnent, it was 1,700 pages in
| engt h. The federal highway program consists of many general
rules, but also has many exceptions w th nuances. He offered

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 3- January 22, 2008



that although he has 12 years of experience with the federal
rules, the departnent has lost through retirement, two people
with in-depth know edge of the federal process. The
transportation planning process is required for the state to
access funds, is codified in the US. code in Sections 134 and
135, and is also codified in regulation. The transportation
pl anning process nust be adhered to for all federal highway
funds Al aska receives, as well as the federal transit funds,
whi ch, he noted, have been increased in the past few years. The
mandate for a planning process goes back to 1934. The planning
process is nore conplex since rules have been added that require
the state to produce a |long-range plan, as well as a short-range
spending plan in accordance wth the |ong-range plan.
Additionally, there are related requirenments and docunents the
state must produce, such as: data on the condition of roadways,
bri dges, and pavenent; and an inventory of roads, including the
wi dth, and functional classification, for exanple, whether it is
a local road or arterial road. The first duty of DOT&PF is to
collect this data which is then delivered annually to the
Feder al H ghway Adm nistration (FHWA) prior to the state
receiving any federal funding.

MR. OITESEN stated that DOT&PF is required to have an outreach
process and nust consult with other local, state, and federal
tribal agencies. DOT&PF produces the STIP under strict fiscal
discipline and is required to split the duties. Al t hough the
state highway agency, as it is referred to in the act, is
responsible for many of the duties, sonme duties are shared with
the large Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPGs) in each

state. Al aska has two MPGCs: the greater Fairbanks area,
including the Fairbanks North Star Borough (FNSB), and the
Municipality of Anchorage (MA). The MPOS are required to

produce their own spending plans, Transportation |nprovenent
Programs (TIPs), so the decision nmeking authority is actually
held by the MPCs and not by the state. Therefore, the MPOS act
al nost |like separate entities within the state.

1: 45: 51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked how soon the Matanuska- Susitna
Borough (Mat-Su) would reach the density and population
necessary to formits own MPQO

MR. OITESEN related that he expects the Matanuska-Susitna

Borough to reach population density in the 2010 census. | t
takes about two years for that process to be docunented, which

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -4- January 22, 2008



occurs before an MPO woul d be mandat ed. He suggested that the
process woul d be conplete in approxi mtely 2012.

1:46: 15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH clarified that to reach MPO status an
area nust have a population density of 50,000 and a popul ation
density per square mle. She asked the percentage of FHWA
funding that is directed to MPGs, and how that funding wll be
i npacted by the addition of the proposed Mat-Su MPO.

MR. OITESEN responded that one of the exceptions in law is that
all other states, except Hawaii and Al aska, use a forrmula set in
law to determne the funding allowable for MPGs. One category
is set at 62 percent, and the fornmula is based on a strict state
popul ati on proportion so the end result is that the proposed new
MPO woul d receive 10 percent of the 62 percent, or a little nore
than 6 percent of that one category of funding. Since Al aska
was not included in the fornmula and no alterative was provided,
DOT&PF devel oped a formula by regulation in 2002 and delivers to
the MPOGs approxinmately twice as nuch funding as the federal
formul a woul d. He stated, in response to a question, that by
subtracting out the MO funding allotted for Fairbanks and
Anchor age, the proposed Mat-Su Borough MPO would get a sliver of
t he remai ning funding based on the state fornula. He noted that
the state fornula takes into account factors, such as the
popul ation, the nunber of mles of road, and the safety record
on those roads.

1: 48: 13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN related his understanding that the parts
of the STIP that pertain to the Minicipality of Anchorage MPO
stem from the Anchorage Metropolitan Area Transportation
Sol utions (AVMATS) process rather than fromthe state process.

MR. OITESEN noted his agreenment, but pointed out that a few
categories of funding spent within Anchorage are from the state
pr ocess. The national highway system routes are prepared
cooperatively with MOA The MOA identifies the routes and the
state decides the funding, although sonme additional categories
like safety and bridge funding still remain under state
di scretion. The bulk of the program is decided by the AMATS
policy board and the state’'s job is essentially to approve the
AMATS plan as witten because the state does not have any veto
power over the plan.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -5- January 22, 2008



1:49:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN asked if the process for funding is
limted to the construction portion of projects.

MR. OTTESEN explained that the process is not limted just to
construction purposes because funding could also be used for

buses and for sone operational functions. He stated that he
chooses not to characterize it as limted to construction since
funding could be used for planning also. He acknow edged t hat

the MOA decides what goes into the AMATS plan, and reiterated
that the AMATS plan is not subject to veto by the state.

1:49: 55 PM

MR. OTTESEN, referring to the STIP and the 2030 plan, explained
that both are statewi de nulti-nodal plans that nust cover a 20-
year horizon, and the eight factors contained in the 2030 plan
Both plans are prepared in consultation wth several
or gani zati ons. M. Otesen explained that the process states
use to prepare these transportation plans falls into two
approaches, either to prepare a single plan for the entire state
or to use a tiered plan with top-level policy coupled with nore
detailed plans at the regional |evel and/or system plan |evel
In Alaska, the state owns 40 percent of the road system and
there is a conplex network of transportation systens including
ferries, aviation, and harbors. About a third of the states
i ncludi ng Al aska, have used a tiered approach since 1993, such a
strategi c plan approach. He opined that the tiered approach is
the best approach for Al aska. The concept of an overarching
plan with nore detailed plans is codified in state |aw He
specul ated that there are at |east 15-20 subordinate plans that
help the departnent flesh out +the [Iong-range plan, which
i ncludes the details for aviation, AWMHS, corridors, regions, and
t he use of technol ogy.

1:53: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN asked whether the subordinate plans are
avai |l abl e.

MR. OTTESEN responded that all the plans are |ocated on DOT&PF s
web site.

MR. OTTESEN gave an overview of the federal STIP process, which

all 50 states have to produce for a four-year horizon. He noted
that prior to SAFETEA-LU the STIP had required a three-year

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 6- January 22, 2008



hori zon. A letter is jointly signed and the STIP is approved
bef ore DOT&PF can access federal funds. He offered that the
state can’t work on projects that are not consistent with its
| ong-range pl an.

1: 54: 51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH inquired as to who approves the STIP
plan at the state |evel.

VR. OTTESEN responded that duty is delegated to DOT&PF
commi ssi oner . The plan is then forwarded to tw federal
agencies for approval, along with a transmttal letter.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked whether it is a federa
requi renent that the STIP approval process stay internal wth
the adm nistration or do sone states use a |l egislative process.

MR. OTTESEN answered that a handful of state |egislatures
approve the STIP, but in the majority of states the approval
process is done by the executive branch. He added that the
federal law itself specifies the state highway agency which is
the state departnment of transportation in nost states.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH then asked whether state regulations
require that MPGCs pass their transportation plans through the
| ocal assenbly.

1:56: 04 PM

MR. OITESEN responded no, the approval is not mandated by state
regul ation and each MPO follows its own process, which, he
opined, is a remarkably conplex and diverse process nationw de.
The STIP is required to identify the scope, physical boundaries,
schedul e, cost, and funding types of all projects. The STIP
undergoes federal review and approval with the fiscal
constraints and requirements increasingly nore vigorous. The
STIP is constrained by year and by phase of work. For exanpl e,
phases include design and environnmental work, right-of-way,
noving utilities, and construction. All phases nmust be detailed
and nust total the nmaxinmum nunber of dollars that DOT&PF
estimates is avail abl e. He offered that five or six years ago,
the STIP was over-programred such that it often showed nore
projects than were realistic for the funding. Mre inportantly,
he noted, DOT&PF could not deliver projects due to cost
i ncreases so the STIP was unrealistic. Therefore, DOT&PF is not

HOUSE TRA COWM TTEE -7- January 22, 2008



allowed to spend beyond the STIP program and nust adhere to
strict guidelines.

1:58: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SALMON asked whether DOT&PF applies the sane
rules to the rural roads in smaller conmmunities.

MR. OITESEN answered that in 1995, DOT&PF created criteria
designed to allow rural communities to conpete wth urban
communities, except in Puerto Rico and Al aska where rural roads
are eligible for STIP dollars. He explained that the exception
and the criteria have been focused on achieving sanitation roads
to landfill sites and sewage |agoons to water sites in order to
achi eve basic sanitation in rural areas.

1: 59: 26 PM

CHAI R JOHANSEN stated that when DOT&PF veers away from the STIP
docunent and cannot conplete its projects, it increases public
frustration because the public doesn’'t understand the process
taken to determ ne which projects are funded.

MR. OITESEN rem nded the conmttee that the STIP used to be a
three-year docunent wth a conponent to project out an
additional three years in order to give conmunities a glinpse of

future projects. However, the departnment has vacillated in its
view of the value of projecting projects for six years since the
trend is that costs will go up, additional funding will not be
avai l able, and projects slip, all of which adds to public
frustration and a sense that the planning process is a hollow
process. He opined a preference for a four-year process and

that anything beyond that tineframe is sinply too difficult for
DOT&PF to predict.

2:01: 08 PM

MR. OITESEN, referring to the bottom of page 5 of his overview,
explained that federal rules have becone nore conplex and
demanding with about 20 different funding types to consider.
Funding sources are not just general funds, and instead the

funding is by category and sub-category. Therefore, each
project must be evaluated for exceptions to the eligibility
rul es. What has further conplicated the process is that new

regul ations, as a result of SAFTEA-LU, were first public noticed
as draft regulations in the sumrer of 2006 and were enacted in
2007. He noted that he helped prepare a 50-page letter in

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 8- January 22, 2008



response to the regulations, which outlined concerns that the
American Association of State Hghway and Transportation
Oficial’s (AASHTO two commttees had with the regulations.
DOT&PF al so authored a 10-page letter that highlighted concerns
that the AASHTO letter did not cover. O her states, including
Al aska, have had ongoi ng concerns about how the regulations wll
affect and apply to individual state prograns. He offered his
understanding that the feedback from federal agencies inplies
that the regulations are nore flexible than states have
interpreted them to be and that state transportati on agencies
need to work through [ ocal agencies to interpret t he
regul ati ons. He opined that the old STIP, prior to 2007, was a
much easi er docunent to use than the new STIP.

MR. OITESEN, in response to a question from Representative
Fai rcl ough, advised that AASHTO is an organi zation that works on
behal f of all 50 state transportation agenci es.

2:04: 26 PM

CHAI R JOHANSEN inquired as to nmethods that other states use to
navi gate the conplexity of the new regul ati ons.

MR. OTTESEN responded that one difficult challenge for DOT&PF is
to amend the STIP when there is a change due to funding or cost.
Sonme states have addressed this issue by forward funding their

federal prograns. Those states produce projects with state
funding and then wite the STIP for reinbursenent of those
projects against a known set of costs. However, he cautioned

that the only way the DOT&PF would be able to do this would be
to forward fund the STIP program with an initial $300 to $400
mllion of general fund nonies. The states in which forward
fundi ng has been successful are those states that already have a
revenue streamfroma gas tax or other dedicated fundi ng source.

2:06: 10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAIRCLOUGH asked if the STIP allows for
rei nbursenent. She related that when she served on AMATS, under
t he SAFETEA- LU, AMATS pre-purchased right-of-way properties and
t hen requested rei nbursenent for the advance funded right- of -way
needed for the project.

MR. OITESEN agreed that process could work. However, he
cautioned that when the state or nunicipality pre-purchases
right-of-way, and thereby indicates the specific location of a
road, the state runs the risk that the FHWA may determ ne the

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -9- January 22, 2008



state pre-decided the project and did not follow the prescribed
AMATS process. The FHWA may then determne that the project is
not eligible for reinbursenent.

2:07: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH agreed and reiterated the inportance
for the <conmttee to wunderstand the risks involved for
rei nbursenent in cases in which the state does not follow the
federal government’s continuum and is reinbursed |ess.

MR. OITESEN offered that there are instances of low risk
projects, for exanple buying right-of-way on an existing road
when the goal is to widen the road. In further response to
Representative Fairclough, M. Qtesen stated that SAFETEA-LU
expires in 21 nonths, on Septenber 30, 2009.

2:08: 26 PM

MR. OITESEN referred to the federal policy shifts, including
resci ssi ons. A rescission is essentially funding that the
federal governnent takes back. Proportional funding neans the
state nust return the funding in the sane ratio that it was
awarded, with no flexibility. He opined that this constraint

forces DOT&PF to build projects that may not be the state’s
hi ghest priority, but are within the highest priority in the
particular funding category that fits. He noted that nany
federal mandates do not include funding necessary to inplenent
the required changes, such as a mandate that in 2009 DOT&PF nust
give the public “real tinme” data about weather and traffic.
Anot her mandate is the concept of “conplete streets” which neans
that when building a road, DOI&F nust provide for bicycles,
pedestrians, and transit users in all phases of the project.
DOT&PF is also required to coordinate its efforts with wildlife

agencies. In fact, DOT&PF receives sone requests for bridges to
allow wildlife to cross roadways. He highlighted that unfunded
mandat es nean that ultimtely DOT&PF wi || achieve |ess.

2:10: 54 PM

MR. OITESEN, in response to a question, responded that the
departnent has not yet been provided wth details with respect
to rural roads and trails or if there is an exception in federal
| aw for those projects.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH speculated that in Alaska nandates
could have dire consequences, such that a project that provides

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 10- January 22, 2008



a corridor for snowmbile or four-wheel all terrain vehicles,
could be nmandated to provide a bike trail and a sidewal k al ong
the corridor.

VMR. OITESEN agr eed.
2:11: 37 PM

CHAI R JOHANSEN asked if rescissions are returned to the genera
fund or whether the funding is redistributed to DOT&PF

MR. OTTESEN responded that the rescissions thus far have been to
take back the non-cash portion of the project, which has a
consequence, but doesn’'t necessarily take away fundi ng.

2:12: 06 PM

MR. OTTESEN referred to the top of page 6 of his overview, and
explained that the new federal STIP rules are the first
regul ati on changes in 13 years, since 1993. He offered that the
attorney for AASHTO nade it clear that nost of the regulation
changes were firmy witten in the law and were preordained in
the law, and are not at the discretion of the FHWA but were
regul ati ons Congress nmandated. An anendnent takes a m ni num of
90 days to process, but a mjor anendnent can take up to five

nont hs. Since anything that changes the cost, schedule, scope
of the project, or funding source can trigger an anendnent,
DOT&PF avoids changes to projects. Changes to projects could

potentially halt <construction or accrue damges due to the
del ay, expending mllions of dollars to solve a problem that
shoul dn't happen. He explained that the STIP anmendnent process
doesn’t work well in Alaska, where the construction season is
five nmonths long, whereas in sone other states construction
happens al nost all year round.

2:15:47 PM

CHAI R JOHANSEN asked whether projects cancelled by the chief
executive have an inpact on the STIP

MR. OITESEN responded that cancell ations, project delays, or the
desire to use funds el sewhere would result in an anmendnent to
t he STIP.

2:16: 28 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -11- January 22, 2008



CHAI R JOHANSEN asked nore specifically whether the Ketchikan
Gravina |Island Access Project had been cancell ed.

MR. OITESEN answered that there has been no STIP anmendment as
Al aska’s STIP is currently frozen, pending conpletion of the
state’s long-range transportation plan. He explained that the
STIP and the long-range transportation plan are |inked. The
departnment is rushing to finish the |ong-range plan because the
2008 fundi ng cannot be spent and a STIP anendnent cannot be nmade
until the long-range transportation plan is conpleted.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked whether the Ketchikan G avina
| sl and Access Project was ever included in the STIP

2:17:31 PM

MR. OTTESEN responded yes, adding that the federal earmarks have
to be shown in the STIP for different phases. However, since
DOT&PF | acked full funding, the project was not shown in the
2008- 2009 STIP for the construction phase. Under the STIP rules
t he fundi ng nust be identified, he noted.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN asked whether the STIP requires DOT&PF to
list construction phases by year. For exanple, if a multi-
phased project had been included in the STIP he inquired as to
what assurance DOT&PF has that it will be included and approved
in the STIP for its second or third phase.

MR. OITESEN responded that once the state starts a project, if
the specific project is not approved for subsequent phases, the
state nust reinburse the funds. The state is required to
prepare a financial pl an, escalate it to the year of
construction, and to update the project annually. He added that
a financial plan had been prepared for the Ketchikan G avina
| sl and Access Project, but it showed the need for a great anount
of state funding in order to conplete the project.

2:21:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked whether the planning process
al so includes a decision to “build or not build” to give DOT&PF
an option to not nove forward with a project.

MR. OITESEN responded that the National Environnental Policy Act
(NEPA) process provides for exenption from repaynent in
i nstances when a project is not built. He highlighted that he
has only experienced one instance of a “no build” decision in

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -12- January 22, 2008



his career. He indicated that there are many reasons for
project delays, and those delays are allowed, none of that
viol ates the fundanental decision to go forward on a project, so
long as there is a good faith effort by DOT&PF to conplete the
proj ect . He indicated that DOT&PF recently shut down several
projects in order to avoid repaynent of federal funds.

2:23: 27 PM

MR. OTTESEN gave a status update on the Ketchi kan G avina Island
Access Project and indicated that the record of decision had
been reached, and that sone road work and right-of-way work had
been conpl eted on the project.

2:23:33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN of fered his understanding that when there
are federal funds involved and a change is required, it’s also
necessary to prepare a STIP amendnent .

MR. OTTESEN responded yes, and that the m ninum processing tine
for a STIP anendnment would be 90 days. He added that there are
some anendnments that can occur within a sinpler set of rules,
known as an admi nistrative nodification. Most project changes
require the STIP anendnent process, he noted.

MR. OTTESEN of fered another exanple of a project that triggered
a STIP anmendnent, in which a small Gty of None project funded
by a federal earmark required a small amount of wutility work
totaling less than 2 percent of the project, approximtely
$50,000 of a $3 million project. DOT&PF determned the utility
work would delay the project by an entire year. Ther ef or e,
rather than risk the STIP anmendnent, the City of None paid for
the cost out of city funds.

2:26: 03 PM

MR. OTTESEN, in response to Representative Neunman, explained
that the Knik Arm Crossing Project is currently in the public
review process fore the environnental inpact statenent [EIS],
followed by the record of decision, which is part of the
National Environnmental Policy Act review The project is
currently out for public review, but he predicted it wll
require repaynment if the project does not nove forward. He gave
an overview of the EIS process in which there is a public
review, an agency review, a coment period, and a period when
then the applicant works with the |ead agency, the FHWA who

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 13- January 22, 2008



ultimately controls the decision. The Knik Arm Bridge and Tol
Aut hority (KABATA) produces the docunent, but the decision of
record is held by the FHWA

2:27:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked if funding will need to be repaid
on the Ketchi kan Gravina |Island Access Project.

MR. OTTESEN indi cated that DOT&PF will go back to the conmunity,
review the EIS, and look for alternatives in order to avoid
repaynent . In response to a question, he indicated that one
option would be to look at the ferry system

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked for figures for repaynent, if the
repaynent woul d be necessary.

MR. OITESEN responded that the state would have to repay about
$55 million.

2:29:13 PM
The committee took an at-ease from2:29 p.m to 2:36 p. m

ALASKA MARI NE HI GHWAY SCHEDULI NG

2:36:12 PM

CHAI R JOHANSEN announced that the next order of business would
be a presentation by the DOT&PF on AVHS schedul i ng.

2:36:54 PM

DENNI S HARDY, Deputy Conmm ssioner, Ofice of the Conmm ssioner,
Department of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF), began
by introducing other nmenbers from DOT&PF that were present.

MR. HARDY noted he supplied a handout for reference, but that he
al so had a prepared statenent. He indicated that AVHS schedul e
is being finalized later than normal and the schedule wll be
printed in the M| epost and several other publications. He said
he is working closely wth the publications, and anticipates

that the schedule wll be available on DOT&F web site by
January, 31, 2008. Reservation staff is currently |ogging
requests, he noted. He acknowl edged the inpacts the late
schedule has on the traveling public, the travel support
industry, the travel agents, tour conpanies, and hotels. He

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -14- January 22, 2008



stated that next year AVHS wll be back on its regular
timetable. The schedule is late this year, he explained, due to
maj or changes in routes. The AMHS nmade the decision that all
the vessels could not run the sane as last year and as in prior
years. Therefore, a new schedule had to be created, which is a

conplex and tine consumng matter. Two primary factors entered
into the decision to take this approach, which are fiscal
responsibility and operating costs. In fiscal year (FY 07),
operating costs increased 18 percent with total costs for AMHS
amounting to nearly $100 million per year. He said the schedul e
was changed to reduce operating costs, which are escalating
dramatical ly. The general fund level is approximtely $89
mllion in the current governor’s budget, which is only slightly
hi gher than in FY 08. The system needed to make major changes
to reach fiscal responsi bility, but t hat | ong-term

sustainability is AMHS s ulti mate goal.
2:41:10 PM

MR. HARDY discussed balancing the needs of Alaskans wth
Al aska’s econony, and said that the debate concerns whether AWMHS
serves Al askans only or tourists as well. He opined that the
proposed plan offers a bal ance between the two. He reviewed the
maj or changes. He indicated that AWVHS renoved the nmainliner
the notor vessel (MV) Ml aspina, from Bellingham where it ran
at 55 percent capacity, but the MV Milaspina will now provide
the day boat service in Lynn Canal The MV Colunmbia wll
continue to provide service to Bellingham and the traffic
di splaced from the MV Milaspina wll i ncrease capacity
utilization of the MV Colunbia, except for June and July. He
opined that the overflow traffic in peak season would be
diverted to Prince Rupert instead of Bellingham In fact, AMHS
will focus its marketing efforts on Prince Rupert. The benefit
of noving the MV Ml aspina to Lynn Canal wll be to free up the
fast ferry, the MV Fairweather, to provide inproved day boat
service to Sitka and Petersburg. The MV Kennicott provides
service to the Aleutian chain, but will be put on a two week on
and two week off schedul e as a cost savings neasure.

2:43:34 PM

CHAIR JOHANSEN offered that nost of the questions and comrents
wer e generated when the proposed schedul e was fl oat ed.

2:44: 13 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 15- January 22, 2008



MR. HARDY, in response to a question from Chair Johansen,
i nformed menbers that as the deputy conm ssioner of DOT&PF, he
answers to Conmi ssioner von Scheben, and serves only AMHS.

CHAI R JOHANSEN recogni zed the Ketchi kan Borough Mayor, Mayor Joe
WIlians.

2:45: 06 PM

CHAI R JOHANSEN requested that M. Hardy cover the areas that the
system covers.

MR. HARDY responded that AMHS serves about 30 comunities, of
which Prince Rupert and Bellingham are the southernnost points
of the system The mainline route continues up through
Sout heast Alaska to Haines and Skagway so travelers can go
t hrough Southeast Alaska and into the Canadian Alcan, and
I nterior Al aska. The cross @ilf route serves Prince WIIliam
Sound, Valdez, Wiittier, and Cordova and traffic can continue
into Southcentral Alaska. The Qulf route is used extensively by
the mlitary bases of Eielson Air Force Base and Fort Wi nwi ght
in Fairbanks; and Ft. Richardson and El mendorf Air Force Base in
the Anchorage area, as well as serving the Coast CGuard in
Kodi ak. The southwest route serves Kodiak, Honmer, Port Lyons,
and continues down the Aleutians to Unal aska.

2:47:54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked if AMHS has considered expansion to
serve river systens, such as the Yukon River

MR. HARDY rem nded the conmittee that Representative Sal nobn has
introduced a bill to expand the AVHS system to include service
for the Arctic Yukon-Kuskokwi m (AYK), but the bill hasn't passed
yet. The AVHS woul d conplete a study, if the bill passes, but
at this tinme AVHS does not have operating funds to provide
expanded service. He noted, in response to a question by
Representative Salnon, that AWVHS has had requests from two
communities, Perryville and Quzi nki e.

2:50: 21 PM

MR. HARDY, in response to a question from Representative Doogan,
clarified that the current request in the governor’s budget is
$89 mllion in general fund nonies, and another $12 mllion in
general funds will be used for mnor nmaintenance and overhaul of
t he vessels.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 16- January 22, 2008



MR. HARDY, in further response, related that AMHS generates
revenue of in the anount of $49.3 mllion a year and the funds
go into AVHS to operate the system

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN asked if the general fund and ferry-
generated revenues are the AVHS budget.

MR. HARDY replied yes, so long as the operating costs remain the
sanme, however, he advised that there are other variables that
add costs to the system such as vessel |ayups, vessels affected

by capital inprovenent projects, escalating fuel costs, and
negoti ations over |abor contracts. The AMHS hopes to have
signed three |abor contracts this wnter. He noted that AMHS

uses a three percent inflation factor when developing its
budget .

2:53: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN encouraged AVMHS to get the schedule
publ i shed and to try to increase ridership.

2:53: 34 PM
CHAI R JOHANSEN i nquired as to how the funding plan was derived.

MR. HARDY answered that it was a conbination of determning a
reasonable |evel of service with fiscal considerations. The
operating costs are escalating and AVHS would |ike to stay under
a cap of $100 mllion in general fund operating costs when
preparing the FY 08-09 budget.

2:54: 48 PM

CHAI R JOHANSEN asked if AWHS had been given a specific figure to
keep the budget wi thin.

MR. HARDY stated no, but added that the team evaluated many
scenari os when devel opi ng AVHS budget .

MR. HARDY, in further response, said that AWMHS provided
information to the admnistration, but was not given a specific
dol | ar anount. The AMHS defended its budget to the Ofice of
Managenment & Budget through DOT&PF

2:56: 01 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -17- January 22, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE ANDREA DOLL, Alaska State Legislature, inquired
as to the historical percentage of cost versus revenue.

MR. HARDY indicated that he did not have the history of the
funding for AWHS, but offered to provide it later. However, he
related that for every $1 generated in revenue, AMHS spends $2
in general fund nonies. The aforenentioned has escal ated due to
fuel costs, labor, and general inflation.

2:56:59 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL opined that the [increased operating costs]
were affected by the choice of runs and choices nade in the
past . She indicated she is interested in the proportional
figure of cost versus revenue.

MR. HARDY confirned that the cost of the systemis based on the
vessel s and routes sel ect ed.
2:57: 31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAIRCLOUGH inquired as to the nunber of
passengers served last year and the anticipated nunbers of
passengers for this year in the proposed schedul e. She then
inquired as to how many vehicles will be noved. She related her
understanding that a second vessel was added in Bellingham but
the two vessels are running at 50 percent capacity. And t hus,
t he nunber of vehicles noved is the sane. Therefore it’'s nore
efficient to run one vessel at full capacity. She then asked
whether AWMHS generates the npbst revenue from passengers,
vehicles, or freight.

MR. HARDY responded that revenue is generated from passengers,
vehicles, and freight. M. Hardy, after conferring wth staff,
specified that the revenue is evenly split between passengers
and vehi cl es.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH recalled a hearing last year in which
the DOT&PF comm ssioner related that nore revenue is generated
on the vehicles than the passengers. She inquired as to the
i mpact of the new schedule will have on the novenent of freight,
vehi cl es, and passengers. She said that she assuned that wth
anticipated schedule reductions there will be a corresponding
drop in revenue, and she inquired as to whether AWHS has
forecasted the decrease in revenue. “Have you anticipated that
in the run so that you're developing a nodel that’s nore cost-
effective, if you re going to deter service”, she asked.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 18- January 22, 2008



CHAI R JOHANSESN asked to defer that question for the sake of
time, and indicated his staff will conpile questions.

3:00:41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH announced that she has had nultiple
inquiries fromresidents along the coastal comunities concerned
about how the schedule change will affect their lifestyle. She
indicated that she has access to a road system and asked how
many of the comunities served by AMHS have access to other
nodes of transportation.

3:01:34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN asked whet her AMHS s budget request is for
the full commtnent or is it a bare bones request.

MR. HARDY responded that AMHS s budget request is not a mninmm
budget . He opined that there could be brutal reductions to
servi ce. He then noted that service and operating costs are
synonynous. He related that three |egislators have requested
cost information if the MV Kennicott was not on a two week on,
two week off schedule for the year. He said that the MYV
Kennicott is the nbst expensive vessel to run, ranging about
$425,000 a week to operate. He noted that the MV Kennicott is
laid up nost of the winter to obtain cost savings. The
foll owng were exam ned: 1) to run the MYV Kennicott vyear
round, except for layup and that would cost $4.1 mllion; 2) to
run the MV Kennicott full-time during the MYV Tustenena s
ayout, and to run the MV Kennicott the remaining time on a
t wo- by-two schedul e, which totals about $2.3 mllion.

3:05:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN asked if AMHS is providing the nmaxinmm
servi ce.

MR. HARDY responded that AMHS is not providing full service
under the current budget.

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN requested further information [on the cost
to provide full service].

3:06: 22 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -19- January 22, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked whet her the Ocean Ranger Program
has inpacted AVHS s ability to retain or recruit pilots for
ANVHS.

3:07:11 PM

CHAI R JOHANSEN related his understanding that the [cruise ship
i ndustry] has contracted out with a private conpany to fill
Ccean Ranger positions. Therefore, he said he didn't believe
AMHS has been inpacted yet.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON i nquired as to why the choice was nmade to
enphasi ze Prince Rupert versus Bellingham especially in [|ight
of travel restrictions to Canada and the weakening value of the
dol | ar.

3:08: 33 PM

MR. HARDY said the decision to select this scenario was based on
consensus of AMHS nmanagenent, after reviewing ridership,
revenue, percentage of capacity being utilized, and operating
cost savings. Furthernore, AMHS noved the MYV Ml aspi na, which
was utilized on the Bellingham route, to Lynn Canal to provide
additional service needed and for cost savings. Wth regard to
mar keti ng studi es, he deferred to staff.

3:09:47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON requested the criteria used to make the
deci si on. He indicated his specific interest is the difference
in passenger loads, in order to ensure that a sound business
deci si on was made.

CHAIR JOHANSEN asked to have this information provided to his
of fice for distribution. He then asked if this proposed Prince
Rupert schedule will be consistent over the upcom ng few years.

MR. HARDY acknow edged the inportance of reliable schedules, and
therefore, AMHS proposes that the schedule will remain “pretty
much the sane.”

3:13:58 PM

CHAI R JOHANSEN returned to the change that directs fol ks through

Prince Rupert. He inquired as to the plan for the Prince Rupert
termnal and its connection to Ketchikan.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 20- January 22, 2008



MR. HARDY acknow edged that there are sone deficiencies with the
Prince Rupert termnal, and sonme repairs have been nmade.
Al though the dock is safe, it is old and deteriorating.
Therefore, AVHS has had ongoi ng di scussions with the dock owners
to request that they repair the termnal. The AMHS has al so
sent a letter to the owers to outline concerns about term na
f ees. The 2030 plan indicates that AVHS will not expand its
service, but the southern gateway shuttle is in the Southeast
Al aska Transportation Plan. He stated that until AMHS prepares
a master plan for the system there is not a vessel replacenent
pl an whi ch includes the southern gateway shuttle.

3:16: 50 PM
CHAI R JOHANSEN asked for a status on the |atest master plan.

MR. HARDY advised that a reinbursable services agreenent (RSA)
with the University of Al aska Southeast Transportation Center
was signed in Decenber. A team of consultants wll be working
on the master plan with two deliverable dates. The first phase
includes an as-built condition, a suite of alternatives, and a
framework for making reconmmendations with a deliverable date of
Cct ober 2008. The second phase is schedul ed for QOctober 2009.

3:18:11 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUMAN asked whether the 2030 plan includes
upgrades for vessels or replacenents.

MR. HARDY expl ai ned that he neant to say that the 2030 plan says
there will be no expansion of service, but does recognize that
AVHS has an aging fleet and that vessel replacenent wll be
required. As yet, AMHS is working with the admnistration to
find revenue sources. He noted that of the fleet's 11 vessels

4 vessels are 45 years old; with a life expectancy of 60 years,
the vessels will need replacenent in 15 years.

3:19: 54 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON related his understanding that items not
in the 2030 plan cannot be included in the STIP. Therefore, he
opi ned that the state won’t be able to receive federal funding.

3:20: 44 PM

MR. HARDY recalled that M. OQtesen nentioned the SHAKWAK
funding, which is $10-25 nmillion annually, will no |onger exist

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -21- January 22, 2008



as of 2009. Federal funding projections are expected to |evel
of f or reduce. Wth regard to STIP funding and its interface
with the 2030 plan and AVHS, M. Hardy deferred to M. Qtesen.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON opi ned that funding for projects that are
not 2030 plan or STIP that no federal funds in the STIP will be
used for AMHS. Therefore, he surmsed that sonme other fund
source, perhaps the general fund, will have to be utilized.

CHAIR JOHANSEN advised the conmmttee should hold off on that
thread of questioning until Thursday when M. Otesen is back
before the commttee.

3:22:48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN referring to the operating plan asked if
during the summer the MV Colunbia wll be the only ferry
sailing fromBellingham north once a week.

MR. HARDY responded yes.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN reviewed the proposed AWVHS vessel
schedul e.

3:24: 38 PM

CHAI R JOHANSEN asked if the commttee wanted to get into this
m nutia, and said that the director of AVHS is capable of taking
care of his business.

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN rel ated that at the height of the tourist
season, AMHS is pushing folks north to Prince Rupert. He
inquired as to how AWVHS knows that noving people from the
Bel I i ngham north route to the Prince Rupert north route wll
wor K.

3:25:43 PM

MR. HARDY related that AVHS w il provide marketing incentives
such as fare reductions. He opined, “W do believe that we can
convince the overflow traffic from Bellingham into Prince
Rupert, yes we do.”

3:26: 23 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN asked if AMHS made an operational decision
to nove the sailings to Prince Rupert, and whether the switch is

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -22- January 22, 2008



a conmercially viable option. He stated that his understandi ng
is that AWMHS does not have any information to support its
decision for the termnal |ocation change.

MR. HARDY reiterated that AVHS believes it can provide the
appropriate incentives for the overflow traffic to go north to
Prince Rupert.

3:28:17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOOGAN stressed that this is not reassuring,
either on the face of it, or for the schedul e renaining the sane
for the next three years.

3:28:31 PM

CHAIR JOHANSEN asked if the nmanagenent team agreed on the MV
Kenni cott’s schedul e too.

MR. HARDY confirnmed the MV Kennicott’s schedul e was run through
t he managenent team

3:29:04 PM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL referring to review figures on the Prince
Rupert run, informed the commttee that the enbarking traffic
for Prince Rupert has gone down, whereas for the sane period the
enbarking traffic has increased for Bellingham Furt her nore,
the docking and pier facilities are excellent in Bellingham
She inquired as to the |ayup [and naintenance] costs for the MV
Kenni cott, since it is shut down for several weeks.

MR. HARDY offered to provide Representative Doll ridership
i nformati on.

CHAI R JOHANSEN asked M. Hardy to provide the costs for the two
week |ayup of the MV Kennicott.

3:32: 01 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SALMON recalled that when he first arrived in
Juneau to serve in the legislature he was opposed to the ferry
system However, after his fourth session, he said he now
supports the program 100 percent. He opined he did not
understand the ongoing fight for funding, especially in lieu of
the projected increase of revenues from oil. He asked to hear
sonme positive aspects of the program and to see a forecast and

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -23- January 22, 2008



plan that was not just gloom and doom He said he supports
adequately funding AMHS. He opined that the communities, such
as Angoon need this program funded because when it is not fully
funded, the reductions in service cause hardships in the rural
areas served by AMHS.

3:35:47 PM

CHAI R JOHANSEN offered his sense of frustration too as it is a
fight every year to keep the system going. He opined that AMHS
reaches al | through the state, “f eedi ng” people into
Sout hcentral and the Interior. He noted that a recent MDowel |
Report related how many enbark from Bellingham and | ater show up
in Anchorage, or Fairbanks. He highlighted the transport of

t roops. He opined that it is inportant to get people noved
t hroughout the system and in the wintertine to provide services
from Bellingham to the Al eutian chain. He reiterated his

support for having a budget for AWMHS that adequately funds AWVHS
so that the legislature can review and appropriate funding. He
t hen expressed concerns with the diversion to Prince Rupert, and
the lack of a proactive plan to fix the system

3:39:35 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON opi ned that DOT&PF budget seens |ike a
pi eceneal budget, and that the departnent is consistently in
crisis nmanagenent rather than providing a [conprehensive]
budget/plan for the legislature to address. He added that it is
not just the DOT&PF, but all departnents. He questioned what it
woul d cost to provide service, utilize equipnent, and maxim ze
use of routes.

3:42: 30 PM

REPRESENTATI VE = DOOGAN recall ed t hat | ast year, DOT&PF
representatives characteri zed [ AVHS] as a Sout heast
Transportation Plan that focuses on roads and the ferry as [a
shuttle] to the roads. He questioned whether that’s because
it’s easier to obtain federal funding for roads. If that’s a

probl em then the |egislature should make the decision whether to
pay for the [vessels].

3:46: 09 PM

REPRESENTATI VE NEUVAN asked if the Point MKenzie ferry would be
part of AWVHS s overall plan.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 24- January 22, 2008



MR. HARDY responded no.

3:46: 53 PM

ADJ QURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House

Transportation Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 3:47
p. m

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 25- January 22, 2008



